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DIRECTORATE-GENERAL INTERNAL POLICIES 

DIRECTORATE A - ECONOMIC AND SCIENTIFIC POLICIES 

 

 

Call for tender for framework service contract 

IP/A/EMPL/FWC/2018-001 in three (3) lots for the provision of 

external expertise on regulatory and policy issues in the fields of  

Employment policy (Lot 1) 

Social policy and social protection (Lot 2) 

Health and safety at work (Lot 3) 

 

 
Brussels, 20 September 2017 

 

 

 

QUESTIONS RECEIVED UNTIL 19 September 2017 

 
 

 

Ref.:  Contract notice n° 2017/S 144-296336 

 

Until 19 September 2017, the European Parliament's services have received the following 

questions and have responded as follows: 

 

1. Are Letters of intent required from individual experts joining a consortium as 

subcontractors? 

 

For clarification, a consortium (which is now called “a group of economic operators”) consists of 

economic operators who are jointly liable to the European Parliament for the provision of 

services; see section 7 of the Rules of Tendering. Conversely, subcontractors only have a 

contractual link to the main contractor but not with the European Parliament as such, see section 

8 of the Rules of Tendering. The contractual documents only require the main contractor to 
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divulge the identity (name and address) of subcontractors and describe the subcontracted part, 

see section 3.2 of the administrative offer, but does not require a letter of intent from individual 

experts. 

 

 

2. The specifications require a list of publications in a specialised academic press. A narrow 

interpretation of this criterion could place research institutions, which meet academic 

standards but rely on their own publishing house at a disadvantage. [....]  

Will publications published by our organisations be considered as meeting this criterion? 

 

Section 13.4.2 of the rules of tendering require as proof of a publishing record in the field of the 

lot tendered for “a compilation of publications of the staff planned for the execution of the 

services on relevant issues in the specialised academic press carried out in the past five (5) 

years.” 

 

In that sense, the stress of this criterion lies on the fact that first of all there should be a 

publishing record on employment policy (if applying for lot 1), social policy and social 

protection (lot 2) or health and safety at work (lot 3). The word “specialised academic press” 

here primarily eliminates tenderers who have only published in daily or weekly newspapers with 

a more political take on current issues; it is important that a scientific (academic) approach is 

visible in these articles. 

 

It is up to tenderers to assess whether the internal approach of the organisation who is planning 

to submit a tender conforms to this scientific approach in their publications. Besides, the 

compilation of publications should not only encompass articles of the organisation as such but 

also articles the physical persons who are proposed as experts have published in any academic 

journal, if relevant for the lot tendered for. 

 

-------------- 

 

3. What does the following sentence mean in section 14 of the “Rules for the submission, 

contents and presentation of a tender  for the multiple framework service contract 

IP/A/EMPL/FWC/2018-001 in the fields of Employment policy (Lot 1) Social policy and 

social protection (Lot 2) Health and safety at work (Lot 3)”: “a maximum number of 5 

separate framework service contracts per lot (3 lot x 5 economic operator) may be awarded 

to the tenderers offering the best value for money”? It means that every lot can be awarded 

to a maximum of 5 tenderers and in this case what will be the assignment criterion? 

 

The sentence you are referring to does indeed mean that no more than 5 tenderers can be 

awarded a framework contract for one lot, and as there are three lots, in total not more than 15 

framework contracts will be concluded. 

The assignment criterion is as described in section 14 of the Rules for tendering, namely best 

value for money, and thus hinges on quality and price, as described: “The total number of points 

a tender will receive for a given lot will be calculated by adding the price points to the quality 

points, using weighting factors of 70 %  for the quality and 30 %  for the price.” 

Quality will be evaluated according to the criteria mentioned in section 14.1. Price points will be 

allotted for the daily rate according to the formula mentioned in section 14.3.1 for each category 
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of staff, with the maximum points (for the cheapest offer per category of staff) as mentioned in 

the table in section 14.2.1. 

 

4. Tables 2-4 and 5 in the Annex IV “Global Financial Offer” have to be filled with working 

days and daily rate for Experts. Does this kind of date influence in the calculation of the 

financial scores (price point)? 

 

Please see section 14.2.1 of the Rules of Tendering (emphasis mine): “Tables 2-5 provide a 

model price calculation of different research products. However, the number of days and total 

cost are only estimates at this point: the tenderer is required to describe, as part of the 

methodology, the foreseen realistic combination of staffing and number of working days for 

each type of service; though the information is indicative, it will be taken into account for the 

quality assessment of the methodology.” 

 

Therefore your model calculation for typical products in Tables 2-5 does not influence the 

calculation of price points, but will be taken into account for the quality points. For the price 

point calculation, only the daily rates of Table 1 are taken into account. 

 

5. We wonder if a research contract for a regional body (e.g. Lombardy Region) may be 

considered as the research contract supporting policy development at national level 

indicated in section 13.4.2 (minimum requirements). 

 

The requirement of research contract at national level has to be read as opposed to the 

international level, so also research contracts with regional or even local bodies count, as they 

pertain to the level of one Member State.  

 

6. We are required to indicate to the Name and address of the tenderer on our package. We 

know from experience that it led to difficulties in the past as the package was delivered to 

our own office. Therefore, we would like to confirm with you if it is ok that we indicate only 

the name of [the company] on the front and our address on the back of the package with 

the mention “sender”. 

 

This approach does not pose a problem as the Rule of Tendering merely require that the name 

and address of the tenderer is affixed to “the envelope”, regardless of this being the front or the 

back of the package; the labels are only provided for the convenience of tenderers and their use 

is not obligatory. 

 

------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

7. Is negotiation/amendment of the terms possible for the current invitation in case of pre-

existing contractual requirements and obligations placed upon the tenderer? 

 

Unfortunately, it will not be possible to renegotiate or amend selected parts of the Standard 

Conditions for this framework contract. 

 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
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8. Table 5 in the Annex IV “Global Financial Offer” have to be filled with working days 

and daily rate for five Expert. Do we have to indicate five different kind of experts or five 

different profiles (e.g. name and surname)? 

 

Table 5, just as tables 2-4, are model price calculations, and you should insert the daily rate that 

you mentioned for each category of your own staff as filled in in Table 1 in the column “daily 

rate in EUR”. 

 

For the daily rates for experts for workshops, you are not bound by the categories of your own 

staffing, with the exception that external experts have to be paid at least at the rate of a 

researcher under your own staffing rates. 

 

For this model calculation in Table 5, you need not indicate names or profiles (just leave “Expert 

1, Expert 2...”) but you should proceed to a realistic insertion of daily rates (and number of 

working days) of different kinds of experts for a typical workshop, which could encompass 

anyone from PhD students to senior consultants in industry. 

 

--------- 

 

9. I would like to ask if a core team of less than 5 individuals would automatically 

disqualify us from the tender process? 

 

The requirements in section 13.4.2 of the Rules of Tendering stipulate a minimum (“at least”) of 

five persons who qualify as researchers for the core team; therefore a core team of less persons 

would not meet this minimum requirement. 


